ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
April 16, 2003
7:13 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan Ogg

Representative Les Gara
Representative Mary Kapsner

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ative Peggy

W | son
Representative Kelly Wl f

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 259

"An Act relating to public school transportation, and to the
m ni mum wages for school bus drivers; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 26

"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

- SUBCOWMM TTEE ASSI GNED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 220
"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

- SUBCOW TTEE ASSI GNED
HOUSE BI LL NO. 222
"An Act requiring an annual inflation adjustnment of the base
student allocation used in the fornula for state funding of
public education; and providing for an effective date."

- SUBCOWMM TTEE ASSI GNED

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- April 16, 2003



HOUSE BI LL NO. 233
"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

- SUBCOMM TTEE ASSI GNED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 259

SHORT TI TLE: PUPI L TRANSPORTATI ON FUNDI NG DRI VER WAGES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) GATTO

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 11/ 03 0934 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 11/ 03 0934 (H EDU, L&C, FIN

04/ 16/ 03 (H EDU AT 7:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

CODY RICE, Staff

to Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 259 on behalf of Chair Gatto,
sponsor, and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

EDDY JEANS, Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Educati on Support Services

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and responded to
guestions fromthe conmmttee.

TONNI E BARLOW

School Board Menber

Wangell Gty School D strict

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259.

SUSAN SCl ABBARRASI , Superi nt endent
Wangell Gty School D strict

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- April 16, 2003



DAVE SPENCE, Director

Pl anni ng and QOperati ons

Kenai Peninsula School District

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259.

M KE SCHWARTZ
Pet ersburg, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 259.

STEVE BRADSHAW Superi nt endent

Si t ka Borough School District

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259.

STEVE KALMES, Director of Transportation

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and answer questions
fromthe nenbers.

CARCL CQOVEAU, Superi nt endent

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

CAROL ENZLER, Superi ntendent

Pet ersburg City School District

Pet ersburg, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259.

JANELL PRI VETT, President

School Board

Wangell City School District

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, Presi dent

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

JOHN STEI NER, Menber

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- April 16, 2003



Anchor age School Board

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 259 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-17, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on
Education neeting to order at 7:13 a.m Representatives Seaton
g, and Gara were present at the call to order.
Representatives Gatto and Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 259- PUPI L TRANSPORTATI ON FUNDI NG DRI VER WAGES

VICE CHAIR SEATON announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 259, "An Act relating to public school
transportation, and to the m ni mum wages for school bus drivers;
and providing for an effective date.”

Number 0099

CODY RICE, Staff to Representative Carl Gatto, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 259 on behalf of Chair Gatto, sponsor

He told the commttee HB 259 is in response to recent criticism
of the pupil transportation funding at the K-12 level. The idea
is to encourage efficiency through the school districts by
allowing the districts to keep any noney they m ght save through

cost cutting and/or increased efficiencies. This is would be
acconplished by taking the FY 03 entitlenent for pupil
transportation and dividing it by the FY 03 enrollnent, |ess
correspondence students. That woul d give a per-head nunber for
pupil transportation on a district-by-district basis. That
nunber is set in statute and is used as a multiplier against the
enr ol | ment in future years. That woul d mean  pupi

transportation entitlement would be linked to the nunber of

students that need to be transported.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- April 16, 2003



Nunber 0240

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked M. Rice to address page 1, line 14,
where it says "by $1, 200 per student™".

MR. RICE responded that the idea was to |imt the per head
amount per year for students at $1,200. That figure appears to
be a reasonable limtation. At that price, it is believed that
districts could create efficiencies.

Number 0320

VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked for sonme clarification on paragraphs (1)
and (2) [Page 1, line 11 and line 14 of the original bill]. He
asked if this bill refers to the |esser of the two anmounts. For
instance, one is the per-student allocation divided by the
anount received.

MR RICE replied that is correct.
Nunber 0342

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked what the allotted anount of funding is
under the present budget for the FY [03] budget for per head
cost in student transportation.

MR RICE told the nenbers that the nunbers vary district by
district. He referred to a three-page fiscal note in the bil
packet which breaks down the costs by districts. M. R ce
referred to page 2 [of the fiscal note] in the third columm from
the left titled "Estimated FYO3 COST PER STUDENT. "

Number 0412

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if this bill would provide for each
district to have a different "per capita" or would there be a
statew de "per capita.”

MR. RICE responded that each district will have a separate per-
capita based on what was actually received in FY 03.

VICE CHAIR SEATON noted for the benefit of the audience that
$1,200 per student was the maxi mum for the FY 03 costs. The
[ Ket chi kan] Gateway [Borough Schools], Bristol Bay Borough
School s, Copper River School s, Delta/ G eeley Schools, and
Sout heast |sland School s have FY 03 costs per student of $1,200.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- April 16, 2003



Denali School District's cost is $1,179, and the cost drops
significantly fromthere.

Nunmber 0515

EDDY JEANS, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent, testified on HB 259 and responded to questions from
the commttee. He clarified the fiscal note where it refers to
the per-student anounts |isted. Those that show the $1, 200
anount actually exceeded that anmount but were capped. He said
if he recalls correctly, DeltalGeely was the highest in the
state with a cost of $1,400 per student. M. Jeans told the
committee any school district that shows a $1,200 per-student
cost was actually capped at that price and the actual cost was
i kely nore.

Nunmber 0565

VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked if he has the actual nunbers with him so
the nmenbers can see the differences.

Number 0584

MR. JEANS responded that he does not have them with him but
woul d be happy to provide the nunbers to the commttee.

MR RICE commented that he recalls of the five districts that
were capped, only Delta/ G eely was above $1, 300. The rest were
bet ween $1, 300 and $1, 200.

Nunmber 0619

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that he was curious about the
districts that had exactly a $1,200 per-student cost because
that seemed suspicious. He asked if there has been any anal ysis
on the districts that spend nore than $1,200 per student. I's
there any docunentation of waste within the districts? He asked
if there is a reasonable expectation that those districts could
go down to $1,200 per student wthout affecting student
transportation.

Nunber 0656
MR, JEANS told the commttee that the current system is a

rei mbursabl e system The departnent has in regulation what are
rei mbur sabl e expenses. In each of these districts that were

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- April 16, 2003



capped, they contract for their routes, so they are using the
current system to the maxinmum extent they can in terns of

rei mbursenent from the state. He said in other words, the
districts do not really look for efficiencies. The state w |
reinmburse it, so they submt a request for reinbursenent. M.

Jeans said when he took a |look at page three in the fiscal note
Delta/ G eely had projected to the departnent their FY 04 cost
under the current system of [$882,572]. He said he also knows
that Delta/ Geely would like to add a couple of routes that were
not included in this nunber because they have had an influx of
students in the Delta Junction area. M. Jeans pointed out that
under this proposal they would generate a grant of [$1, 014, 000].
He said he believes this would nore than cover the cost of the
exi sting system and provide enough in funding to cover the costs
of the routes the district would like to add next year.

MR JEANS said that as the departnment works wth school

districts and a projection like this is given to add routes, the
departnment really holds their feet to the fire and makes them
junp through a lot of hoops to get those routes because if the
departnent allows them to get additional routes here, the rest
of the state pays for that under the current system It would
sinply be prorated and everyone would pay for those additiona

routes. Under the system proposed by this legislation, the
district <could go back to their contractor and try to
renegotiate for a lower rate. Dependi ng on what happens wth
the fuel t ax, districts could purchase fuel for their
contractors so the contractors do not have to purchase it
directly. He summarized by saying that this bill really does
open up a lot of avenues for districts to try to find
efficiencies.

Nunmber 0847

REPRESENTATI VE GARA comrented that before he decides to cap the
costs of pupil transportation from 1,000 mles away from anot her
comunity at $1,200 per student, he needs sone assurance that it
is fair to those districts. He said he understands the theory
that there is a desire for the districts to be efficient, but he
does not know the reality of whether or not they can nanage at
| ess than $1, 200. Representative Gara told the conmttee unti
he is convinced of that, he will have a problemwith the $1, 200
cap. He added that he does not think getting rid of the cap as
underm ning the concept of the bill. The bill's concept is to
take what was spent last year and inflation proof it in the
future. He questioned whether the bill really inflation proofs
the costs well enough.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- April 16, 2003



VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked M. Jeans if the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent has contacted the districts on their
position on this bill

Nunmber 0936

MR. JEANS responded that he has not contacted the districts
directly, but he does know that school business officials were
in town a few weeks ago and one of the itens they supported was
noving the current reinbursable programto a grant program He
told the commttee that the current system is a reinbursable
system whereby the state reinburses districts for student
transportation services for students who |live beyond a mle and

a half from school. A district may determne that the high
school or junior high school students can walk two mles or two
and half mles. Those are changes that could be nmade at the

| ocal |evel that would affect how much it would cost for their
pr ogram However, on the statewide l|evel there needs to be a
uni form application to the program so one and a half mles is
the state standard right now. M. Jeans said this |egislation
provides a way at the local level to nake efficiencies in pupi
transportation.

Number 1012

VI CE CHAIR SEATON asked about the differences in hazardous bus
routes that are wthin four blocks of the schools, have no
sidewal ks, and require students to walk on icy highways; sone
districts are busing when they determne there is a hazardous
bus route. Does the state reinburse on those hazardous bus
rout es?

MR. JEANS responded that the state does reinburse on those
hazardous bus routes at the rate of 50 percent on the cost of
t hose routes. He said he sees this as a problem at the state
| evel because the l|ocal board gets to establish what is a
hazardous route and the state reinburses 50 percent. In sone
cases, the district may be able to use crossing guards instead
of establishing hazardous routes. Those are the things the
districts nust ook at from a local level that the state cannot
control.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON responded that the districts on a |local |eve

could be | obbying for a bike path or sonme other way to avoid the
hazar dous routes. The district would then have the savings

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- April 16, 2003



incorporated within the district grants instead of just |osing
t he noney because the district has nothing to reinburse.

MR. JEANS replied that he believes that 1is an accurate
assunpti on.

MR. RICE noted for the record that he has contacted the Delta-
G eely School District and at this point they have not weighed
in on their position on HB 259.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON added that his office has contacted the Kena
Peni nsul a School District, but they have not had enough time to
anal yze the nunbers yet. He asked if any other school districts
have wei ghed in on this.

Nunber 1184

MR RICE told the conmttee that he also contact the Matanuska-
Susitna (Mat-Su), Fairbanks, and Anchorage School Districts. In
response to Vice Chair Seaton's question as to their position on
the bill, M. Rice said all three districts were very interested
in the bill, but were not willing to go on the record at this
poi nt .

Nunber 1230

VI CE CHAI R SEATON announced for the record that Representative
Kapsner has joined the commttee, and that the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Education does have a quorum

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d that Lower Kuskokwi m School District
was contacted but no official response has been received.

Nunber 1250

VI CE CHAIR SEATON referred the nmenbers to Section 2 in the bil
that refers to nonpublic school student transportation. |In that
section it renoves the word "departnent” and replaces it wth
the word "district". He asked if the state has areas where the
departnent provides transportation to public and private schools
that are not in a district and that would still need to receive
transportation fromthe departnent. He asked if there will be a
| oss of transportation services by this change in | anguage.

MR. JEANS said that this | anguage renoves the reference fromthe

departnent and replaces it with the district. Wat is currently
happening wunder this system is that school districts are

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- April 16, 2003



providing transportation for non-public school students when
there is space available and when it is over an existing route.
This would allow districts to continue that practice as the
state noves to a grant program

VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked if this practice is on a space-avail able
basi s. M. Jeans said yes. Vice Chair Seaton asked if there
woul d be any required changes by districts for providing that
public transportation.

MR. JEANS replied that this service is for non-public school
st udents. For exanple, the bus goes by a private school
student's house, there is space available on the bus, that child
can get on that bus, the bus goes right by the private school
and the student can be dropped off at the private school.

VICE CHAIR SEATON clarified that even though there is a change
in the wording, there is no required change by the districts.

Nunmber 1390

MR. RICE asked that the conmittee take up Version V before the
committee for consideration. He pointed out that the difference
between Version U and Version V is that Version U is a
[ proposed] sponsor substitute and Version V is a proposed
commttee substitute. M. Rce stated that is the only
di fference between the two versions of the bill

Nunber 1440

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that he recalled one version of the
bill having |anguage that addressed cost increases into the
future. He commented that Version U of the bill has the nunber

set in stone forever.

MR. RICE responded that to his know edge, there never has been
an inflationary increase conponent in the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that 10 years from now the nunber
will still be the sanme as this year.

MR RICE replied that would be entirely up to the | egislature.

Nunber 1472
MR. JEANS clarified the point that the bill does not allow for
any inflationary adjustnent, but the anount of noney

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- April 16, 2003



appropriated will change from year to year based on the changes

in enrollnent. So if a district has nore pupils, it wll
qualify for a larger grant. VWhat this bill will do is lock in
the student anount. On page two of the fiscal note where the

departnment has identified estinmated FY 03 costs per student,
that would be the anmpbunt per student that the district would
qualify for and then as the districts' enrollnent increases or
decreases, their grant will increase or decrease from year to
year.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON pointed out that this bill does not have any
inflationary amounts built into it, but does allow the districts

sone flexibility in how they provide pupil transportation. For
instance, if they have one child at the end of 20-mle road

they could send a taxi for that student, instead of sending a
bus.

MR. JEANS commented that it is true that the bill allows
districts flexibility. He said it is inportant to note that the
grant will change from year to year based on how nany students

are enrolled in the district.

VICE CHAIR SEATON added that the allocation anount for pupil
transportation per student would remain the sane.

Nunmber 1565

MR. JEANS agreed that the amount would remain the same until the
| egi sl ature changes it.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG posed a situation in which a district, for
exanpl e, Kodiak Island School D strict, believes that they are
providing pupil transportation as efficiently as possible;
however, the contractor cones in and says insurance costs have
gone up, and fuel costs have gone up, and the actual bid cones

in over what the grant allows based on pupil enrollnent. | f
Kodi ak |sland Borough wants to add nore noney to keep the sane
service, will that anmount have an inpact on the cap that | ocal

governnments can contribute to education?

MR.  JEANS responded that it wll not inpact the cap for
educat i on. The reason is that pupil transportation is from a
special revenue fund and districts account for that outside the
operating fund. The cap under the foundation program only
applies to the school-operating fund. So if a district did find
itself in a position where the costs were actually higher than

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- April 16, 2003



the grant, the municipality could nake an appropriation to the
pupil transportation fund to cover those additional costs.

Nunmber 1658

VICE CHAIR SEATON told the commttee an anendnent wll be
offered for a new section to elimnate the one-and-a-half-mle
distance requirenent that is in another section of statute.
That anendnent is currently being drafted by Legislative Affairs
Legal Services. He nentioned this because he wants the nenbers
to be aware that anmendnent will be offered at sone point.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked how the anendnment would change
stat ute.

VICE CHAIR SEATON responded that it elimnates the distance
requirenent so if the districts decide that they want to change
the requirenent to one mle and three-quarters or two mles and
provi de ways for students to get there, the districts can change
t hat di stance requirenent.

MR. JEANS told the conmttee that he believes the distance
requirenent is not in statute, but in regulation. He said that
if the grant program passes, the departnent wll be repealing
all the regulations dealing with reinbursabl e expenses.

Number 1719

VI CE CHAI R SEATON t hanked M. Jeans for the information.

Nunber 1748

TONNIE BARLOW  Menber, School Board, Wangell Gty Schoo
District, testified on HB 259. She encouraged the committee to

take sonme tinme to allow districts to review the bill and
understand the inpact of the I|egislation. Ms. Barl ow expl ai ned
that it is difficult to understand the effect the legislation
will have on the districts because anendnents are being
di scussed that they have not had the opportunity to review. She
said because Wangell is a small district, any amunt wl]l

i npact them greatly. She asked that tine would be provided for
districts to ensure that transportation issues are addressed
adequatel y. Ms. Barlow said she Dbelieves that pupi

transportation should be reinbursed by the state at 100 percent.
Currently, the state approves contracts by districts. W angel

has a five-year contract already approved by the departnent, so
when fiscal cuts are nade the district is |ooking at honoring a

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- April 16, 2003



contract that has been commtted to with |ess funding. She said
this will inpact student achi evenent because funds will have to
be taken away frominstruction to pay for transportation.

Number 1820

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked M. Jeans how existing contracts that
extend over multiple years would be influenced by this change in
| aw.

MR. JEANS commented that many districts are in the mddle of
five-year contracts right now. By using the FY 03 as a base
year, at a mininumthe state is covering the existing contracts.
The contracts do have inflationary adjustnments built into them
but he submts that the districts could go back to the
contractors and reopen those negotiations based on the |evel of
funding available to them M. Jeans said he has already been
contacted by a nunber of districts that want to reopen their
contracts if the gas tax passes to purchase the fuel for the

contractor. These are issues that will be addressed at the
| ocal |evel.
Nunber 1895
SUSAN  SCl ABBARRASI , Superi nt endent, W angel | Cty School
District, testified on HB 259. She told the commttee that
Wangell, other communities in Southeast, and other areas of

Al aska continue to be hit hard with major economc decline.
This has been devastating to the school districts. Wangell has
the highest city sales tax in the nation, at 7 percent. She
said this tax allows the community to support the schools to the
cap each year to conpensate for flat funding. The city cannot
conti nue to pay for unf unded mandat es, cutting of
transportation, and underfundi ng.

M5. SClI ABBARRASI said that Wangell has a history of valuing
education, but with the econom c decline, current high tax rate,
and major cuts to education, the district will have to cut the
school budget between $700,000 to $900, 000 next year. She said
the district is reducing their certified teaching positions by
29 percent, thereby increasing the pupil-teacher ratio (PTR) and
elimnating many el ective classes that have proved to enrich the

quality of education. This bill continues that downward spiral,
especially for districts that are already in crisis. MVs.
Sci abbar r asi urged the conmttee to fully fund pupi

transportation. Research shows that for students to get a
quality education, they nust attend school. Decr easi ng

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- April 16, 2003



transportation budgets could cause a decrease in bus routes,
thus providing a reason not to attend school or to attend
sporadical ly.

Number 1994

VICE CHAIR SEATON clarified any confusion about sone comments
that have been nade. He said the governor's budget cane to the
| egislature with only a portion of pupil transportation funding
and it is anticipated that the issue wll conme forward again
next year. The attenpt here is to try to change the system so
that the districts do not get a portion of reinbursenent w thout
having the flexibility of containing their costs. He said that
is the objective of this legislation; it is not just a cutting
nmeasur e. It is a way to change the process so that districts
are not faced with short-funding pupil transportation.

Number 2060

REPRESENTATI VE GARA agreed with Vice Chair Seaton. There wll
be continuing pressure in the future to figure out a new pupil

transportation formula. That just seens to be a reality. He
encouraged school districts to cone up with a proposal that
woul d neet the governor's concern. The governor's concern is
t hat by fully fundi ng every school district's pupi

transportation costs, it is wunclear if some districts are
spendi ng too nmuch and whether there is any waste in the existing
contracts. There are those that are looking for a funding
mechanismthat will try to assure the legislature that contracts

are being negotiated in the nost efficient nmanner possible. He
asked the districts to advise the nenbers of any proposals they
m ght have in addressing this problem He said he is not
speaking for anyone else on the commttee, but that he just
wants those listening to understand the concern that has been
shared with the nenbers and what this bill is trying to address.

Nunber 2153

DAVE SPENCE, Director, Planning and Operations, Kenai Peninsula
School District, testified on HB 259. He said he appreciates
the efforts of the commttee in considering an equitable way to
address transportation costs. The school district would like to
be a part of the process, but they need tine to really

under stand what the consequences will be in having a fixed grant
anmpunt to provide pupil transportation. M. Spence said he
believes the Kenai Peninsula School D strict has been quite
conpetent in providing transportation in an efficient and

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- April 16, 2003



econom cal manner. He pointed out that there are changes that
i npact the costs of transportation with increases in insurance,
gasoline, and naintenance costs. There are also other things
that cone into play. He pointed out that the district does not
know how the [federal] No Child Left Behind (NCLB) |egislation

wi |l inpact the schools. [The district] continues to have a | ot
of pressure for renediation, and transportati on acconpani es that
in the sunmertimne. The district continues to address special

education needs, and there are transportation costs associated
t here. O her agencies have a domno effect on how the district
can provide transportation around Kenai .

Number 2218

MR. SPENCE pointed out that what happens in other departnents
al so affects transportation. For instance, how well the roads
are nmaintained, hazardous bus routes, and bad weather also
i npact the costs of transportation. He said the district would
like to understand what locking in the amount will nean to the
district. M. Spence said that |like other districts around the
state, their school district has had financial problens that
could be severely inpacted by this legislation. The current PTR
has significantly gone up. They have laid off a |ot of teachers
and have had to elimnate activities travel. He said they would
like to request some time, consideration, and careful study on
this bill.

Number 2330

VICE CHAIR SEATON thanked M. Spence for his testinony and
explained that this is the first commttee of referral for this

bill. There will be many nore opportunities for the district to
provi de their position. He told M. Spence that Version V wll
be "on line" shortly; however, Version U is the sane bill wth

the exception of a title change from sponsor substitute to
conmmittee substitute.

Number 2411

M KE SCHWARTZ testified via tel econference in opposition to HB
259. He explained that he owned the transportation conpany in
Pet ersburg for many years and recently sold the business to a
young man who |ives there. Currently, Petersburg is getting

$229 per student and Wangell is getting $449 per student. He
said there is a stranglehold on education that goes beyond his
conpr ehensi on.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- April 16, 2003



Nunber 2453

MR. SCHWARTZ said that the bid in Wangell took place when his
equi pnent was five years old. By law, school buses can be no
older than ten years old. So he was able to conpete.
Wangell's contract, on the other hand, had ten-year-old buses
and they had to go out and buy all new buses, which was his
justification for getting $449 per student. M. Schwartz said
that in the twenty-five years he was involved in pupi

transportation the districts tried saving noney in all sorts of
ways including paynment for transportation on a daily basis. He
said he was paid so nuch per day, per mle, and per route. For
those in the business, there is a total cost required and that
is what it is going to take to run the business. Petersburg is

already in a stranglehold educationally. He said he went to
school in Petersburg, taught school there, and has two children
who are currently teaching there. The cut to education this

year is going to be $500, 000. The district will have to cut
teachers and prograns, and they are elimnating sports and mnusic
pr ogr ans. Wen the contractor cones in next year to bid this
contract, he will have to conme in wth brand-new equi pnment. | f
the legislature passes this legislation, the contractor will not
be able to buy new buses, but wll have to find five-year-old
buses, which will not be easy because everyone w ||l be | ooking
for the sanme thing. This is a huge hardship on nmany
conmuni ties.

Number 2560

VI CE CHAIR SEATON commented that M. Schwartz brings up a good
poi nt about agi ng equi pnent.

MR, SCHWARTZ told the committee the first tine the districts cut
a hazardous run and a student is killed, the legislature w|l

| ook back on this and wonder why this was done. He said this
l egislation will hurt a ot of communities. He asked fair it is
that sonme districts are locked in at $1,200 while others are
| ocked in at a | ower rate.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON announced for the record that Chair Gatto has
joined the neeting, but that he hinmself will continue to chair
the neeting, since Chair Gatto is the sponsor of HB 259.

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked M. Jeans about the question of old

equi pnrent and purchase of new equipnent, and how that m ght be
addr essed.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- April 16, 2003



Nunmber 2639

MR. JEANS responded that he knew this would conme up as an issue.
He told the commttee in his experience with contracts, even
when a district has a contract with new buses, he does not see

the contracts going down five years later. He said that once
the contract is signed at a certain level, the costs just keep
going up fromthat level. He said he understands M. Schwartz's

poi nt about Petersburg's dil ema. He pointed out that Annette
| sl and does it cheapest in the state at under $100 per day.

VICE CHAIR SEATON said that is an issue the conmttee will be
considering as the | egislation goes forward.

Nunber 2738

STEVE BRADSHAW Superintendent, Sitka Borough School District,
testified via tel econference on HB 259. He told the committee
he appreciates the intent of the bill and would |ike to take the
time to see what the inpact would be on the district. He said
he appreciates being held harm ess this year because |ike many
districts in the state, Sitka is in the first year of a five-
year contract, so this could have a trenendous inpact on the
school district. The governor's proposal for transportation
will cost this district about $150,000, and the district cannot
afford that. He asked that the district be given tine to | ook
the legislation over. He told the committee one concern that
occurred to himis that the grant is based on a per-pupil basis
and that could be very difficult. Currently, the Sitka district
is building in 30 fewer students in the budget than |ast year,
but that does not nean any bus routes could be cut or that the

cost of transportation would go down. M. Bradshaw said his
initial reaction is that it will be tough to base the grants on
a per-student basis. He summarized his coments by asking the

menbers to give the district nore tinme to provide input.
Nunber 2809

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked M. Bradshaw if he would fax his
t houghts on the bill to Chair Gatto's office.

Nunber 2845
STEVE KALMES, Director of Transportation, Anchorage Schoo
District, testified via teleconference on HB 259. He rem nded

the conmmttee that 98 percent of all students that are injured
on their route to and from school are not school bus riders

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- April 16, 2003



They wal k, bike, or are driven by their parents. School bus
transportation is the safest possible way to get kids to and
from school

MR KALMES said there is an assunption that there are

inefficiencies in pupil transportation across the state. He
said he does not believe that is the case. I n Anchorage they
currently run fewer buses than in 1985, when enrollnment was
10,000 students fewer. Costs have increased. A commerci al
driver's license is now necessary that has a whole host of
requirenents that go along with it, including drug and al cohol

testing, background checks on drivers, a 40-hour driver training
program and a certified school bus instructor that is required
by the state; al | drivers receive first aid and CPR
[ cardi opul nonary resuscitation] training. The districts are
also required to do specialized training for special-education
students.

Nunmber 2926

MR. KALMES said there are significant increases in the cost of
equi pnent and supplies. For exanple, the cost of a tire has
nore than doubled in the last 10 years. The m ni rum wage for
school bus drivers that is soon comng will be an added expense.
He told the commttee they have done things in the Anchorage
School District to control costs. They worked wth the
Department of Education and Early Developnent to consolidate
contracts W th [ Mat anuska- Susi t na School District] and
[ Fai rbanks School District]. Prior to that, the district had no
ot her bidders on transportation contracts. He said this tine
there were six bidders, so the district has been successful in
attracting conpetition. The district uses |arger buses. For
i nstance, four buses transport the sanme nunber of kids that used
to require five, so the district saves operating costs on one
bus. The staff does not Iike to hear this, but the
transportation departnent sets the school tines to ensure there
is the nost efficient system in place. The district increased
the fleet age in the last contract from 10 to 12 years. The
wages for the district's school bus drivers have been frozen,
and the top paid drivers nake $.25 nore per hour than they did
20 years ago. M. Kalnmes told the conmttee the district uses
crossing guards and has elimnated hazardous routes wherever
si dewal ks have been built.

TAPE 03-17, SIDE B
Nunber 2981

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- April 16, 2003



MR. KALMES pointed out that the district may start the year with
over 200 students and end the year with over 300. That is an
i ncrease over the course of a year which inpacts the nunber of
routes that operate.

VICE CHAIR SEATON told M. Kalnes that the commttee appreciates
the efforts districts have made in cost saving efficiencies. He
asked where this bill would differentiate between the governor's
proposal of funding at the 80 percent level, and if there are
some other nechanisnms to fund pupil transportation that would
not be as detrinmental to districts.

MR. KALMES said the Anchorage School District would be nore than
willing to work with other districts and the departnent to cone
up with sonething. The problem with putting sonmething in place
is that sone districts would Iike to keep the savings; Anchorage
School District just wants to pay the bills. VWhat wi Il happen

is that efficient districts will not be able to find savings to
keep, but the inefficient districts that will find efficiencies
will be rewarded. He volunteered to work with other districts

toward a solution or audit other districts' transportation
syst ens.

VI CE CHAIR SEATON asked M. Kalnmes to fax any suggestions for a
positive solution to the conmttee.

Number 2883
CARCL  CQOVEAU, Superi nt endent, Anchorage  School District,

testified on HB 259 and answered questions from the nenbers.
She told the coommittee the district is very concerned about this

bill and the governor's proposed cuts to pupil transportation.
The district is as efficient as possible based on the |arge and
growi ng nunber of students. Not all the new subdivisions have

safe roads, and there are heavy traffic patterns which are
changing all the tinme, so the district is required to provide
transportation on those hazardous routes. She pointed out that
Anchorage is the hub for the vast majority of special education
students who have serious nedical or behavi oral problens.

Nunmber 2826

M5. COVEAU said all of those students who receive education
services receive transportation as part of their IEP [individua
education progran], and the district is required to provide that
transportation to them In sonme cases, it becones very
expensive and very individualized. For exanple, the district

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- April 16, 2003



has a contract to provide education for the Al aska State Schoo
for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing. Because that is a state
contract, there are a nunber of students who live in the Mat-Su
ar ea. The Mat-Su does not provide the educational program so
the Anchorage School District is required by the departnent to
provide pupil transportation from Mat-Su into Anchorage for that
pr ogram Ms. Coneau said she believes the district is being
penalized in this bill or by the governor's proposed cuts. She
said the district wirked very closely with the departnent two
years ago to becone as lean and efficient as possible and to
bring in a new contractor.

Number 2774

M5. COVEAU said they would like to be part of the solution and
asked the conmttee to look at putting together a group of
people from different parts of +the state, where there are
different-sized districts, and di fferent conplexities of
transportation. She believes this bill would not allow for any
growh in student population, particularly in the specia
educati on popul ati on. There needs to be a factor included that
provides for that conplexity of student transportation that the
district nust individually provide to those students. The NCLB
is going to be another conplicating factor if the district has

to reduce transportation routes for students; that wll nost
directly inpact the |owest socioeconom c-base students, who
oftentimes are the |owest-achieving students. They may or may
not be show ng adequate yearly progress in NCLB, and if the
students are not even in school, the district will be penalized
because the district will not have 95 percent of each subgroup

attendi ng school to be tested.
Nunber 2730

CHAI R GATTO, sponsor of HB 259, told the commttee that one of
the sol utions proposed by the governor is an enornobus percentage
cut in student transportation. If the districts experience a
cut without a resolution in favor of sone other nethod, would
not the district be nuch worse off?

M5. COVEAU responded that the Anchorage School District is very

concerned about the portion of the bill that only |ooks at
average daily nenbership (ADM, rather than sone kind of way to
factor in the special education and hazardous routes. No one

wants any child killed or seriously injured because a district
has taken away transportation and made himor her walk on a very

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- April 16, 2003



hazardous street. There needs to be a way to factor in sone of
t hose situations beyond just the ADM factor.

CHAIR GATTO replied that since there is only one avail able pot
of noney for pupil transportation, if the legislature factors in
speci al education and hazardous routes for one district, it nust
be factored into all districts. How wll the districts be
better off?

M5. COVEAU said that she believes it is essential to | ook at the
kids that are being transported, and it is nore than just
nunbers of students. The district is required by federal and
state law to provide transportation for certain nunbers of kids,
those [covered by the] Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act (| DEA). Ms. Coneau said she believes it would not be fair
for the district to take away transportation for other Kkids
because those children have as nmuch right to safe transportation
to school as the special education kids, who sinply have nore
protection under federal |aw

Nunber 2652

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Coneau to explain how this
| egi sl ati on does not factor in special education kids.

M5. COMEAU said she will speak to this question but wll ask
Steve [Kalnes] to also address the question. She posed a
hypot heti cal exanple where five special education students who
have wheel chairs noved into Anchorage. That is the only way the
students can get around. So the district nust transport them
with a bus that has a [ift. Mst of the tine these kids do not
live anywhere close to each other, so there is an elaborate
shuttle system that is as efficient as it can be. So the
transportation for five special education students is very
different from the transportation of five non-special education
students that are just added to existing routes.

Number 2580

MR. KALMES told the commttee that 40 percent of the district's
buses transport 5 percent of the students. That is the
district's handi capped popul ati on. Because of the |low density
and the fact that program l|locations are spread all across the
district, it is nore expensive to transport these students.

Many of the kids need additional services and specialized
trai ning because they have nedical needs. There are kids that
need short ride tines so it reduces the length of time they can

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- April 16, 2003



be on the bus. M. Kalnmes told the commttee that the district
cannot transport a nedically fragile kid for $300 per year.

Nunber 2537

CAROL ENZLER, Superintendent, Petersburg Gty School District,
testified on HB 259. She commented that as she was |listening to
Carol Coneau's testinony on special education transportation,
she noted that it is likely that Anchorage has nore than its

fair share of special education students. One thing that was
not nentioned is that many of those students nust be transported
door to door. These students are not required to go to a main
pi ckup location, as other students are required to do. Ms.
Enzl er asked the comrittee to give the districts an opportunity
to review the bill to determ ne what inpact it mght have. She
said it does not look as though it will be a great inpact for
Pet er sburg next year, but the district needs to have a chance to
| ook at what it will do in the future. She told the commttee
she will fax the nenbers the district's conmments on the inpact
of the bill

Nunber 2477

VI CE CHAI R SEATON announced that the commttee plans on hol ding
the bill and asked all the districts to send suggestions on ways
of inproving this bill or any other ideas in addressing this
i ssue.

Nunber 2442

REPRESENTATIVE OGG said that he wll be leaving to attend
anot her nmeeting, but will listen to the testinony |ater on Gave
to Gavel.

Nunber 2413

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER nentioned that Version V is not available
on line yet, but that Chair Gatto's office could provide copies
to those that request it.

VICE CHAIR SEATON agreed wth Representative Kapsner and
announced that any one wi shing to have a copy of Version V of HB
259 should contract Chair Gatto's office.

Nunber 2362

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- April 16, 2003



JANELL PRI VETT, President, School Board, Wangell City School
District, testified on HB 259 and answered questions from the
comittee. She said communities have not had an opportunity to

|l ook at the bill to determne the intentions and inpact it may
have. She encouraged the nenbers to talk with the contractors
who provide busing for the districts. M. Jeans can give the

menbers their nanes. She said she believes it is very inportant
toinvite themto the table. She said they are experiencing the
sane kinds of increases in costs that all private businesses
face with increased liability and insurance costs. She pointed
out that when Wangell and Petersburg nunbers are being quoted,
it is inmportant to keep in mnd that Wangell's contract is new
this year and Petersburg has no idea what its contract will |ook
| i ke next year. She asked that the legislators renenber their
responsibility wunder the state constitution to ensure that
Al aska's children have an opportunity for an adequate education.
The kids will not be at school w thout appropriate busing.

Number 2240

M5. PRIVETT told the commttee that she cannot support any bil

the brings nore reductions to her comunity when the comunity
i s demandi ng excellence in education. The community is paying
for that as best they can. Wangel | has the highest sales tax
in the state of Alaska; they contribute the |argest anount
possible to education; they are responsible in funding
education; however, they cannot sustain what the |egislature
keeps reducing in a fair and equitable manner. This year al one,
29 percent of their staff wll be term nated. She said there
are many great ideas, but those ideas cost nore and nore noney.

Nunber 2210

M5. PRIVETT rem nded the nenbers that they are walking in the
sane footsteps as nmany other l|egislators, and are continuing to

do the sane things and will continue to fail as a legislature
She told the coonmittee they are not bringing forth a responsible
fiscal plan, or a plan that has a future. One of the great

governor's of this state made a statenent and she said she
believed he was wiser than all of us understood at the tine:
Governor Hickel said that "when there is no vision, there is no
hope, and there is no future, no agenda for Alaska, if your only
i deol ogy or only philosophy, if your only cause is to cut the
budget . " She asked the commttee to |ook toward developing a
fiscal plan. One positive note in the bill is the inflation
proofing of bus driver's salaries. She asked that the commttee
| ook to inflation proofing costs of education as well.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- April 16, 2003



Number 2134

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked her to please contact Chair Gatto's
office to get a copy of Version V of the bill

CHAIR GATTO comented that sone districts are gaining
enrol I ment, sonme districts are losing enrollnment, and sone
districts' enrollnment is steady, but what is noteworthy is that
in every single one of those cases the districts are asking the
| egislature to increase pupil transportation. This is something
that does not seem possible for the legislature to do when the

governor is suggesting that there be reductions. If the
| egi slature responds to only those districts that are |osing
students, as in Wangell, and ignores those that are gaining

students and those that are staying steady in enrollnent, howis
that fair to anyone?

Nunmber 2086

M5. PRIVETT suggested that the conmmttee sit down wth the
providers and find out why there is so nuch inconsistency. She
said she believes that will provide sonme of the answers. The
Anchorage School District superintendent spoke eloquently on the
different services the districts are required to provide, M.

Privett said. In the community of Wangell there is only one
bus provider. There will not be conpetition.
Nunber 2058

CHAIR GATTO said this is far fromthe question he'd asked.

M5. PRIVETT pointed out that Wangell's current busing contract
is less than that of the previous five years. Wangell has al so
reduced their bus routes.

CHAIR GATTO asked how it is fair to take nobney away from
districts that are gaining enrollnent or those whose enroll nent
is the sanme and give it to districts that are |osing enroll nent.
How can it not be fair to treat everyone the sane by saying a
district will get a certain anmount of noney for each student?
s not that a fair way to do it?

M5. PRIVETT said she believes Chair Gatto is putting her in an

unfair position. She said if she had adequate information to
answer that question, she would, but she can only speak to her
district's position. Those questions should be asked of each

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- April 16, 2003



district, but she will be happy to provide the answer on behalf
of her own district. There are people within the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, specifically, Eddie Jeans, who
shoul d be able to answer that question for Chair Gatto.

Nunmber 1986

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told M. Privett that Version V of the
bill does not provide for inflation proofing of bus drivers
sal ari es.

Number 1958

VI CE CHAI R SEATON agreed with Representative Kapsner's comrent.
He asked Ms. Privett to get a copy of Version Uor V from Chair
Gatto's office.

Nunber 1910

DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, President, Association of Alaska Schoo
Boards, testified and answered questions from the commttee.
She told the committee the association consists of school board
menbers from across Alaska and they are extrenely concerned
about the current discussions going on a nunber of fronts with
respect to education. Districts are really feeling the pinch,
and the talk of reductions in pupil transportation and other
areas is extrenely al arm ng.

M5. OSSIANDER said there were four areas of discussion she

wanted to bring up on this bill. First, school boards are
concerned about linking paynents to 2003 standards if there is
no inflationary index in the bill. As the costs to contractors
go up, the districts have to neet those costs. She said the
second item of concern is the lack of regard for changed or
hazardous conditions, or special student popul ations. Third,

she said she was concerned with the adm nistration's testinony
[inmplying] that school boards could have children wal k |onger
than one and half mles and that it would be perfectly safe and
acceptable thing to ask communities to do. Fourth, there is
al so concern that federal mandates require that schools have a
95 percent attendance or the school will be placed in a failing
category. How that wll factor in with new discussions on
tightening pupil transportation or not fully funding pupi
transportation is a serious question.

Nunber 1796

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- April 16, 2003



M5. OSSI ANDER expressed the belief from the nenbers of the
association that school boards and school districts have been
working extrenely hard to <contain their costs in pupil
transportation. She said she is amazed that there is the belief
by sonme that there would be some wllingness by private
contractors to open up a contract and renegotiate the ternms when
there is a reversal in revenues from the public entity that
entered into the contract. Ms. Ossi ander concl uded her renarks
by saying pupil transportation funding affects a nmajority of
districts in the state of Alaska profoundly. If the funding
does not neet the fixed contract costs, then the funds will have
to come from somewhere. The passion the nenbers are hearing in
testinmony reflects districts' deep concern that these funds wll
cone from the classroom She urged the commttee to tread
carefully and told the commttee the association believes in
fully funding transportation costs accordi ng to need.

Nunber 1728

CHAI R GATTO commented that he and Ms. Gssiander have been on the
sane side for a lot of years, and he wanted her to know that
they are still on the same side. He said his biggest concern is
the $10.7 mllion reduction in pupil transportation. He said he
thinks that if these reductions were to go ahead, the districts
woul d wonder how the legislature could have |let this happen. He

said what he is trying to do with this bill is to reverse the
$10.7 mllion in a way that is acceptable to the governor's
office and to the |egislature. This may be a way to do that.

It does put the responsibility back on the districts. That is
what he has been asked to do by districts, instead of their
making efficiencies for which the district gets no benefit,
because every tinme a district makes an efficiency, the noney
goes back into the general fund. This is a way that if
efficiencies can be found, the district can keep the noney
saved.

CHAIR GATTO told M. Gssiander this bill is a result of
conversations he has had with school districts who said if they
were given a fixed anount of noney, they know where they could
make sone efficiencies and would apply them if the nobney were
the districts' to keep. That is the reason for the bill. It is
not sinply a desire to cut into education, but rather an effort
to restore education funding. Chair Gatto said he knows that
the $10.7 million will conme right out of the classroom and he
does not believe there is roomto take it out of the classroom
He told Ms. Ossiander that he is trying his best to keep the
noney in the classroom It appears this bill mght be on the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- April 16, 2003



right track. He does not have a different solution unless M.
Ossi ander might have one. He said if the districts face this
big a cut, he knows where it will be comng from and that is
why he is here trying to resolve this problem He said it is an
i nperfect system and inperfect people are dealing with it. He
does not know where to get the funds for fully funding student
transportation. He said he will be listening to Ms. Gssiander's
comments because he knows she has been involved in student
education for many years.

Number 1566

M5. OSSI ANDER expressed her thanks for Chair Gatto's intent in
putting forth this bill because she knows the concern and care
he has about this issue. She said if she had to decide between
the two choices, she would go with Chair Gatto's. She does not
have the understanding yet that she nust step away from what she
believes is right, and that is fully funding the costs for pupi
transportation. If it is necessary to go with HB 259, there are
sonme ways the bill could be inproved. One thing m ght be to get
people from various-sized districts to serve as auditors or a
specific group of experts that could suggest some changes that
woul d wor k. Another thing that would help is if there were a
little bit of flexibility from ADM to accord for specia
ci rcunst ances such as special education popul ati ons or hazardous
conditions that have cropped up. Ms. Ossiander said she hopes
her suggestions hel p.

CHAIR GATTO replied that her suggestions do help. However ,
every time there is a suggestion, there is a new problem
associated with it. He reiterated that the anount of noney that
will be appropriated is fixed and any kind of flexibility from
ADM wi Il cone fromwthin the districts. The group of experts’
idea is wonderful. Chair Gatto said he believes M. Gssiander
is well positioned to conme up with one, two, or three people who
woul d have good i nput. He said he needs the information pretty
qui ckly, and he said he is nore than wlling to make changes to
the bill if it would result in an inprovenment. Any changes that
suggest the legislature increase the anpunt of noney above the
$10.7 mllion will have to have a nethod to produce those funds.
If there can be a system developed to inplenment the idea, that
woul d be really welcone. Chair Gatto explained that it needs to
be done sonmewhat quickly and that suggestions are welcone,

whether they are from experts or not. CHAIR GATTO said
currently the admnistration is cooperating, but if that 1is
|l ost, he said he is fearful of what wll happen. He said he
hopes to get the bill to where it is acceptable and pass it on.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- April 16, 2003



It may not nmeke it all the way, but at least the commttee did
the best they could at the tine.

Nunmber 1389

MS. OSSI ANDER said she would send Chair Gatto a couple of nanes
of people who are transportation folks.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said the House is not in |ockstep on this
i ssue. She said she does not believe this is the best that can

be done with what the state has. She believes there is a |ot
nore noney than what is being said. Just because the governor
did not want to fulfill his prom ses on education does not nean
she does not want to fulfill her prom ses. Representati ve

Kapsner said she does not believe the legislature is beholden to
the governor and it is not necessary to be in |ockstep with him

She said in the previous eight years the legislature was not arm
in arm wwth the governor's office, so there is no need to be
NOWw. The legislature is an independent body, and she said she
bel i eves nenbers should be thinking for thenselves. This is not

a route she wants to take. Representati ve Kapsner reiterated
that the legislature is not in 100 percent agreenent on this
i ssue.

Number 1313

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked for clarification of Representative
Kapsner's conments. He asked if she has problens with specific
parts of the bill or just is in favor of full funding of pupi

transportation.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER responded that the school districts are
not bound legally to provide student transportation, but the
state is. She asked M. Jeans if her assunption is correct.

MR. JEANS replied that the state is not required by law to
provi de pupil transportation.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER commented that she worries when the
| egi sl ature saddles school districts with having to turn their
backs on special-needs kids or having a first grader walking
over a mle and a half to neet the bus. She said that thought
makes her shudder. The education community is the last place
she believes the |egislature should be |ooking for cuts.

Nunber 1217

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- April 16, 2003



JOHN STEI NER, Menber, Anchorage School Board, testified on HB

259 and answered questions from the committee. He told the
commttee that the transportation costs are not discretionary
for the school districts. They are driven by contracts,

conpetition for drivers, route distances, geographic extent and
scope of the district, student residents' density wthin the
district, weather and climate within the district, fuel costs,
road and traffic conditions, hazardous routes, comrunity growth
patterns, and the degree of federally protected specia
educati on students. He pointed out that none of the factors he
mentioned are related to ADM

Number 1130

MR. STEINER said he very nuch appreciates Chair Gatto's efforts
to make sonme sense of the fact that whether the nunbers are
driving the anount of transportation dollars when districts are
growng or shrinking, it is an inperfect or flawed solution.
For exanple, if there is a conpact community with relatively
mld weather and no heavy traffic highways that nake hazardous
routes, they may need to transport virtually none of their
children, since they nmay all be wthin walking distance.
However, for a community that is geographically w despread with
a |ot of highways, such as Anchorage and Mat-Su and Kenai, there

will be a very different picture. Wthin that the question is
not how many students are in the district, but how many w |l

need transportation. In one dense nei ghborhood in Anchorage it
may be that virtually all the children walk to school. In

another, it may be that all of them have to ride because of the
hi ghway conditions around the school and the distance from where

the students [Iive. If 100 students are added for a
redevel opnent in a community that is close to a school, there is
no additional <cost for transportation. If it is a new
subdivision that is far away from a school, those children may
require an entirely new bus route, which will be substantially
nore expensive for the school district than if the children live
next to the school. Al of this suggests that in order to have
a fair and workable solution it wll be necessary to |ook at

factors ot her than ADM

Number 1015

MR. STEINER told the commttee that his fundanental concern is
that the 20 percent cut is not possible. It is a flawed
situation, particularly when a large portion of the cost is in a
district where transportation is very efficient. To put a cap
on all those issues nentioned earlier, including changes in

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -29- April 16, 2003



grom h patterns and special education, does nmake it cone out of
the cl assroom because there is nowhere else to take it.

Number 0940

VICE CHAIR SEATON told M. Steiner that he should contact Chair
Gatto's office for a copy of the bill and the fiscal note. He
said the idea of this bill is that npbst of the factors M.

Steiner nmentioned are taken into account by going to |last year's
2003 costs to the districts. So whether a district is rural or
not, the attenpt was made to |l ook at its actual costs right now.

He said the figures in the fiscal note wll show a vast
difference in the cost of pupil transportation from district to
district. The attenpt is to use that as baseline data and then
only |l ook at the changes to ADM The legislature will need M.

Steiner's input on how the legislature mght address other
factors that need to be considered. Part of the hope is that if
schools are being built along highways, the district wll be
| obbying very hard with the boroughs and nunicipalities for
adequate bi ke paths or adequate ways of accessing those schools
so that they are not in hazardous conditions.

Nunber 0748

CHAIR GATTO said the nenbers are famliar wth the funding
formula and many of the itens he nentioned are included in that.
He said he can only imagine if the legislature tried to devel op
a formula that included densities, fuel costs, traffic patterns
and routes, community grow h, and locations for special
education students, all of which would change the very next
year, which would nmean nore adjustnents. It would be dynamte.

Number 0570

CHAI R GATTO rem nded M. Steiner that M. Jeans said that pupil
transportation is perm ssive. It is conceivable that everyone
in the House and Senate will agree to restore the $10.7 mllion
in funding, and the governor has the ability to cut that. He
said he is not sure that the governor wll not because he is
| ooking for a CBR [Constitutional Budget Reserve] draw limted
to $395 million; if the legislature ends up above that figure,
he will be |ooking for places to cut the budget.

CHAI R GATTO said that the only thing he would |like to do is make
it [less] difficult for the districts to at l|least be able to
depend upon a certain anmount of noney. The districts do well
with predictable nunmbers and knowing the student enroll nent

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 30- April 16, 2003



gives a predictable nunber for student transportation. Chair
Gatto said he knows the costs are going up and believes all the
menbers know that, but he does not want to see nopbney coni ng out
of the classroom to fund pupil transportation. If there is a
cut, that is the only place he knows of where it will conme from
He said the population in the Bush is stable to slightly
growi ng; in Southeast it is shrinking; and in Anchorage and Mat-
Su it is slightly growing, sone areas nore than others. Those
are trends that may not continue, but may reverse; however, he
said he is trying to look at a way to get this witten in stone
in a way that will help districts with predictable anpunts of
noney. That is his goal.

CHAI R GATTO said he does not know how to make a fornula taking
into account all the things M. Steiner nentioned. Even if he
did cone up with a formula, it would probably be changed over
and over again each year, trying to nmake it correct, and it
woul d never get there.

Nunmber 0515

MR. STEI NER responded that he fully respects those concerns and
consi derati ons. He told the nenbers that he has a copy of the
fiscal note and sees the various anounts that are spent in
different districts. The current fiscal year does consider sone
of those factors already. Sonme of those factors do change from
year to year, as Chair Gatto had nentioned. The changes in
grow h patterns and where new highways are built change where
hazardous routes are |located, as Vice Chair Seaton had
ment i oned. He said his concern in using an ADM wth no
adj ustnent factors that allow for an efficient district to have
a way to address those cost increases, is that the funds wl|
wind up comng directly out of the classroom There may be
other districts where there are efficiencies that could be
gai ned, but he said he does not believe those savings should
stay in the school district. There should be sone system that
requires districts to be efficient and for those funds to be
used to help those other districts that are already efficient,
if that is the case.

Number 0353

MR. STEINER shared the concern that the governor nmay sinply
"l'ine item veto" pupil transportation. However, if the
| egi sl ature has gone to the public, has carefully |ooked at what
has been touted as a cost-plus financing system and has
determ ned that although there nay be sone inefficiencies, the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -31- April 16, 2003



vast mgjorities of these nonies are being spent extrenely
efficiently, the governor would listen if the legislature told
the governor that there is no way to get this reduction fromthe
program because of the extrene inportance of student safety and
the fact that the only place reductions can cone is from the
cl assroom

Number 0261

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards, testified on HB 259 and answered questions from the
menbers. He told the commttee that he has been |istening very
carefully to the testinony this norning and in the Senate
Finance Commttee |ast evening, as well as the discussion that
took place in the House with regard to the operating budget. He
told the commttee that these are the challenges of the tines.
Much of what the committee has heard today is a result of
frustration, and people clinging to principle and wanting to be
treated fairly. On the other hand, the state is facing serious
econom ¢ and political challenges.

MR. ROSE said he cones to the conmttee today, as he is |ooking
at this budget and trying to cone up wwth a plan that addresses
districts' needs, in part, the $10.7 mllion, and that presents
"us" with one opportunity. Things start to |ook bleak when
| ooking at the next fiscal year and on down the road. He said
he is very concerned and alarnmed. The state is operating froma
point of scarcity right now and |ooking to squeeze every area.
He told the commttee he testified |ast evening and nuch of the
focus was on econonmic developnent [oil and gas in Arctic
National WIldlife Refuge] that is anticipated in 10 years. So
if looking at the future in 10 years, that says that the sixth

graders today wll be the [people with bachelor's degrees] 10
years from now. If Alaska is going to be devel oped, education
is going to be an inportant elenent from [kindergarten] through
uni versity. The best possible education that the state can

provide in its schools is going to be [imted by access, so that
is why transportation is so inportant.

Nunmber 0052

MR. ROSE said he lends his support in saying that this is an
i ssue that needs to be addressed. "We" are trying to |ook at
what the short-term benefit mght be and the |ong-term inpact.
He said he is hearing that the districts wuld Ilike the

committee to nove slowy. However, M. Rose said that he feels
urgency, that there needs to be sonething done, and that it is

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -32- April 16, 2003



inportant not to sit back and wait. He commended the conmttee

and the sponsor for putting this bill forward. The bill wll
not be settled in this committee; it has to go through the
entire House, the committee process in the Senate, and the
Senat e. This bill needs to get noving. No one wants to

conprom se. The governor has many options available to him he
not only has the line-itemveto authority, but he can reduce the
appropri ations. That is not sonething districts have
experienced in the | ast eight years.

TAPE 03-18, SIDE A
Nunmber 0033

MR. ROSE said in the past the districts have had a governor who
was wlling to add noney to the budget; therefore, the districts
were fearless of any veto of additional funds. This is a
different set of circunstances today. He told the commttee he
wants to lend his support to this |egislation. He thanked the
commttee and the sponsor for bringing this issue forward, for

| ooking for solutions, and said he knows there will be nunerous
opportunities for districts to bring concerns to t he
| egi sl ature. He said he really appreciates the sponsor's

efforts in restoring the $10.7 mllion in the short term M.
Rose told the commttee he is really concerned about what the

budget battle will be next year and in subsequent years. The
state has a lot of work to do. He said he hopes the Special
Commttee on Ways and Means wll conme up with sonme brighter

out | ook, as Janell Privett from Wangell had nentioned earlier
There needs to be sone kind of fiscal plan that gives everyone
sonme hope. In the short term however, everyone is conpelled to
|l ook at the realities and challenged of the tines. M. Rose
summarized his coments by saying that he supports the
commttee's efforts, but that there is a sense of urgency and
there is a need to get noving.

Nunmber 0132
VI CE CHAIR SEATON agreed that this commttee has the same sense

of urgency that M. Rose expressed. The legislature is working
on the budget and trying to restore funds and identify where

those monies will conme from He said there are a nunber of
different issues that nenbers are putting forward to try to
identify revenues that can pay for these things. Vice Chair

Seat on appl auded the sponsor for comng forward to try to take
the pupil transportation off the table as a major item of budget
cutting because the nenbers have seen the priorities listed by
the governor. Vice Chair Seaton said the |egislature should not

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 33- April 16, 2003



ignore those priorities, because the governor has the ultimte
authority and unless the legislature addresses those in sone
way, it is possible transportation will be cut.

Nunmber 0256

CHAIR GATTO agreed with the coments made to the committee.
There is the short-term and long term view, the |ong-term which
is about ten years off. He said he is currently working on sone
way that will do sonething for education and that wll enhance
the revenue stream for education. It is hard to do. There has
to be support from the House, the Senate, the governor, and
sonetimes the public. In the short termthe |legislature has to
deal with this budget now. It does not matter that in two,
three, five, or ten years the state wll be better off.
Something has to be done today with the budget that is before
the |egislature. That is why this conversation is happening
NOW. What does the legislature do now? It is inportant to
restore funds to education, and everyone is in agreenent [on
that]. How does | egislature make that happen? \Were does the
noney cone fronf? Those are the questions that need to be
answered. [HB 259 was hel d over.]

Number 0484

CHAI R GATTO announced that the following all deal wth the sane
issue: HOUSE BILL NO 26, "An Act relating to the base student
allocation used in the fornmula for state funding of public
education; and providing for an effective date.”; HOUSE BILL NO
220, "An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."; HOUSE BILL NO 222, "An Act requiring an
annual inflation adjustnment of the base student allocation used
in the formula for state funding of public education; and
providing for an effective date.”; and HOUSE BILL NO 233, "An
Act relating to the base student allocation used in the fornula
for state funding of public education; and providing for an
effective date.” A subcommittee will look at all of these bills
that deal with noney for education funding and will bring one
bill back to the full conmttee to deal with. That subcommttee
wi |l be conposed of Representative Seaton, chair; Representative
Wl son; and Representative Gara. Chair Gatto said that he hopes
the funding fornmula can get an increase in funds. He said the
menbers are concerned about kids and education and want a

foundation fornula bill to nove though the process quickly
before the legislative session is over. He hopes the
subcommittee will conme back to the full committee at the next

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 34- April 16, 2003



nmeeting with a bill to address the fornula. [ End of discussion
of HB 26, HB 220, HB 222, and HB 233, all of which were sent to
a subcomm ttee.]

CHAIR GATTO briefly returned attention to HOUSE BILL NO 259,
"An Act relating to public school transportation, and to the
m ni mum wages for school bus drivers; and providing for an
effective date.” He said that he hopes to have changes to HB
259 after consulting with sone of the commttee nenbers and
i ndividuals whom M. GOssiander said would assist in nmaking
revisions to the bill. [HB 259 was held over.]

ADJ OQURNIVENT
Nunmber 0583

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Education neeting was adjourned at 8:54
a.m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 35- April 16, 2003



